
 

1 

 
 
 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Thursday, 10th November, 2005 
 
Place: Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Room: Council Chamber 
  
Time: 7.30 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer: 

Simon Hill, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
email: shill@eppingforestdc.gov.uk Tel: 01992 564249 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors Mrs D Collins (Chairman), Mrs J H Whitehouse (Vice-Chairman), Mrs D Borton, 
M Colling, K Faulkner, P Gode, Mrs A Grigg, F Maclaine, Mrs M Sartin, D Stallan and 
M Woollard 
 
 
 
 

 
PLEASE NOTE THAT THIS MEETING IS OPEN TO ALL MEMBERS TO ATTEND 

 
 

 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 2. MINUTES  (Pages 5 - 14) 
 

  Decisions required: 
 

To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 6 October 
2005.  

 
 3. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS   

 
  (Head of Research and Democratic Services). To report the appointment of any 

substitute members for the meeting.  
 

 4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Head of Research and Democratic Services). To declare interests in any items on the 
agenda. 
 
In considering whether to declare a personal or a prejudicial interest under the Code 

 



Overview and Scrutiny Committee  Thursday, 10 November 2005 
 

2 

of Conduct, Overview & Scrutiny members are asked pay particular attention to 
paragraph 11 of the Code in addition to the more familiar requirements. 
 
This requires the declaration of a personal and prejudicial interest in any matter before 
an OS Committee which relates to a decision of or action by another Committee or 
Sub Committee of the Council, a Joint Committee or Joint Sub Committee in which the 
Council is involved and of which the Councillor is also a member. 
 
Paragraph 11 does not refer to Cabinet decisions or attendance at an OS meeting 
purely for the purpose of answering questions or providing information on such a 
matter. 
 

 5. HIGHWAYS LOCAL SERVICE AGREEMENT   
 

  Recommendation: 
 

To consider the current position on the establishment of the Highways 
Local Service Agreement. 
 

The Head of Environmental Services and Mr Paul Hardy, the Area Manager for the 
West Essex Highways office will be attending the meeting to report on the current 
position regarding the Highways Local Services Agreement and consider questions. 
 

 6. REVIEW OF WORK PROGRAMME AND REPORTS OF PANEL CHAIRMAN  
(Pages 15 - 22) 

 
  The Committee is asked to consider the attached updated Overview and Scrutiny 

work programme for May – Oct 2005. To advise on current developments, all Panel 
Chairman have been invited to attend this meeting to report on the current work of 
their panels. 
 
As requested by the Chairman of this Committee at its last meeting on 6 October 
2005, Panel  Chairmen are requested to indicate when current reviews will be 
completed. 
 
Standing Panels  Chairman  
  
Finance and Performance Management Councillor J M Whitehouse 
Housing Councillor S Murray 
Planning and Environmental Services Councillor D Stallan 
E-Government and Information and  
Communication Technology Councillor F Maclaine 
Constitutional Affairs Councillor R Morgan 
  
Task and Finish Panels 
  
Externally Funded Leisure and Youth Provision Councillor Mrs A Grigg 
Register of Development Proposals Councillor F Maclaine 
Member Training Councillor Mrs M Sartin 
Traveller Issues Councillor P McMillan  
 



Overview and Scrutiny Committee  Thursday, 10 November 2005 
 

3 

 7. CABINET REVIEW   
 

  Recommendation: 
 

To consider any items to be raised by the Chairman at the Cabinet 
meeting on 14 November 2005. 

 
(Head of Research and Democratic Services). Under the Overview and Scrutiny rules 
the Committee is enabled to scrutinise proposed decisions of the Executive. The 
Chairman is also required to report on such discussions to the Cabinet. 
 
The Committee is asked to consider the Cabinet agenda for the meeting on 14 
November 2005 (previously circulated) to see whether there are any items that they 
wished to be raised at that Cabinet meeting. 
 

 8. REPORT OF TASK AND FINISH PANEL ON REGISTER OF DEVELOPMENT 
PROPOSALS  (Pages 23 - 26) 

 
  (Councillor Maclaine). To consider the attached report of the Task and Finish Panel. 

 
 9. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY - STAFFING SUPPORT.  (Pages 27 - 28) 

 
  (Head of Research and Democratic Services). To consider the attached report. 

 
 10. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC   

 
  To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 

public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of business set 
out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in the paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act indicated: 
  
  

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
  
To resolve that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during the 
consideration of the following items which are confidential under Section 100(A)(2) of 
the Local Government Act 1972: 
  

Agenda Item No Subject 
Nil Nil 

  
Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution require: 
  
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
  
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

  



Overview and Scrutiny Committee  Thursday, 10 November 2005 
 

4 

(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 
completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

  
Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
  
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
  
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

  
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 
 
 



EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MINUTES 

 
Committee: Overview and Scrutiny Committee Date: Thursday, 6 October 2005 
    
Place: Civic Offices, High Street, Epping Time: 7.30  - 10.30 pm 
  
Members 
Present: 

Councillors Mrs D Collins (Chairman) Mrs D Borton, M Colling, K Faulkner, 
P Gode, Mrs A Grigg, F Maclaine, Mrs M Sartin, D Stallan and M Woollard 

  
Other 
Councillors: 

Councillors Mrs P Brooks, K Angold-Stephens, J M Whitehouse, D Jacobs, 
A Lee, P McMillan, S Murray, Mrs P K Rush and Mrs C Pond 

  
Apologies: Councillors Mrs J H Whitehouse 
  
Officers 
Present: 

J Scott (Joint Chief Executive), J Gilbert (Head of Environmental Services), 
A Scott (Head of Information, Communications and Technology), J Akerman 
(Chief Internal Auditor), I Willett (Head of Research and Democratic 
Services), W MacLeod (Elections Officer), R Barwell (Public Relations and 
Internet Officer), S G Hill (Senior Democratic Services Officer) and Z Folley 
(Democratic Services Assistant) 

  
By 
Invitation: 

Aidan Thomas, Epping Forest Primary Care Trust 

 
 

43. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN FOR THE MEETING  
 
In view of Mrs J Whitehouse’s apologies for the meeting, the Committee were asked 
to appoint a Vice Chairman for the meeting. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That Councillor F Maclaine be appointed Vice – Chairman for the meeting. 
 

44. MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 1 September 2005 
be taken as read and signed by the Chairman as a correct record subject to 
the inclusion of Councillor Mrs M Sartin in the apologies for absence for the 
meeting. 

 
45. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS  

 
It was noted that Councillor Mrs P Brooks was substituting for Councillor Mrs J 
Whitehouse at the meeting. 
 

46. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs D Collins 
declared a personal interest in agenda item 5 (Commissioning a Patient - led NHS - 
Consultation exercise) by virtue of being the Chairman of the Epping Forest Primary 
Care Trust. She declared that her interest was prejudicial and that she would vacate 

Agenda Item 2

Page 5



Overview and Scrutiny Committee  6 October 2005 

her position as Chairman for the meeting during the consideration and voting on the 
item. 
 

47. COMMISSIONING A PATIENT - LED NHS - CONSULTATION EXERCISE  
 
(Councillor F Maclaine acted as Chairman for this item) 
 
The Chairman reported that the ‘Commissioning a Patient Led NHS’ exercise had 
placed a requirement on Strategic Health Authorities  (SHAs) to lead a process to 
review the pattern of Primary Care Trusts (PCTs). He introduced and welcomed 
Aidan Thomas the Chief Executive of the Epping Forest Primary Care Trust to the 
meeting  who was in attendance  to discuss a number of options in relation to the 
process and help formulate any District response. 
 
Mr Thomas stated that the exercise was designed to implement two main aims of the 
government which were to reduce management costs following the introduction of  
new payment arrangements for acute services and create a change in the way that 
services were delivered to reflect patient choice. He reported that the proposals 
sought fewer PCTs and SHAs, changes in responsibility for certain services provided 
by the NHS, practice based commissioning and attempted to secure improvements in 
health care, reduce inequality in services, and identify and meet local needs. He 
reported that SHAs had been tasked with the  process and would be submitting 
views to the Department of Health by the deadline of 15 October 2005. This would be 
followed by a formal consultation to start in December 2005. 
 
He asked the Committee to consider the following three main options for PCT 
configuration: 
 
Option 1: one PCT covering the whole of the Essex County Council, Southend 
on Sea and Thurrock Unitary Authority areas; or 
 
Option2:  two PCTs, one covering North Essex and one covering South Essex; or 
 
Option3: five PCTs each covering the catchment area of one of the Essex 
District General Hospitals: 
 
• North East: Colchester and Tendering 
• Mid: Braintree, Chelmsford & Maldon 
• West: Epping Forest, Harlow and Uttlesford 
• South West:: Basildon, Brentwood and Thurrock 
• South East: Castle Point Rochford and Southend.  
 
He reported the likely outcome of options for SHAs and various other permutations 
under consideration for PCT reconfiguration including the ‘M11 options’ and the 
Hertfordshire Borders which had regard to housing proposals for the area.  
 
Mr Thomas answered a series of questions. He stated that under the options, trusts 
would not be as local to patients . This could impact on patients ability to influence 
the decision making process. He advised that existing user and patient involvement 
forums would still be required but would cover larger areas. He reminded the 
Committee that improvements to St Margarets Hospital in Epping were funded by the 
Private Finance Initiative and  therefore would not be affected by the reorganisation. 
He stated that the proposals indicated that certain services might be provided by a 
range of different providers to include the private sector. He advised that services 
should not be affected in the short term and that he had yet to identify the 
implications for services in Ongar.  

Page 6



Overview and Scrutiny Committee  6 October 2005 

 
The Committee noted that Epping Forest PCT had responded to  the consultation  to 
express their  concerns. The response stated that the Trust were of the view that 
option 3 (5 PCTs) was the best  identified option in terms of financial allocations as it 
linked the District with areas to the West.  
 
The Joint Chief Executive (Community) reported that the East of England Regional 
Assembly had formulated a response. They had stated that PCTs should be based 
on County areas. He reported that most District Councils and the Local Strategic 
Partnership supported option 3 (five PCTs). He drew attention to a letter of Councillor 
Heavens in which he had responded on behalf of the partnership giving the reasons 
for their preference. The letter indicated that  the other options were too remote from 
the public and local agencies. Overall, the letter expressed reservations about any of 
the proposed changes and drew attention to past experience with large 
organisations. 
 
The Committee considered these views. It was noted that there could be significant  
housing development in  Harlow and suggested that it  would make sense if this was 
linked in to the catchment area  covered by  West Essex in option 3. It was 
suggested that these boundary issues be addressed.  
 
The Committee took into account the information reported at the meeting and 
supported the arguments put forward for Option 3 (5 PCTs) and recommended 
accordingly.  The Committee however tempered this by stating that none of the 
identified options were desirable and that ideally there should be no changes to the 
existing arrangements. The Committee were of the view that proposals would have a 
negative impact on local services and be remote from patients and existing services.  
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
(1) That Mr Aidan Thomas be thanked for his presentation on the Commissioning 

a Patient Led NHS Consultation exercise and; 
 
(2) That the Essex Strategic Health Authority be informed of the 

recommendations of the Committee set out below: 
 

• That there be no changes to the existing structure of Primary Care Trusts. 
 

• That of the three identified options, option 3 is the least worst option as it will 
entail that PCTs will still be relatively close to local services and residents and 
reflect the catchment area of the District general hospitals which will  support 
work already undertaken. 

 
48. PRESS AND PUBLIC - ATTENDANCE AT STANDING AND TASK AND FINISH 

PANELS  
 
The Senior Democratic Services Officers reported that at the 7 July 2005 meeting of 
the Panel, preliminary consideration had been given to the policy to be adopted in 
relation to press and public attendance at Scrutiny Panels. Legal requirements stated 
that Panel’s need not be subject to access to information procedure rules as they 
were not decision making bodies. This did not preclude open meetings but provided 
a legal basis for excluding public access if that was the view of Members. 
 
The Committee considered four options:  
 
(a) Option 1 - no attendance by press and public 

Page 7



Overview and Scrutiny Committee  6 October 2005 

 
(b) Option 2 - all meetings open except where confidentiality must be preserved 
 
(c) Option 3 - presumption that press and public will not attend unless Chairman 
determines otherwise. 
 
(d) Option 4 - regular press briefings on OS/Panel work, subject to resources 
 
The view was expressed that Panels’ would need to engage in policy formation in 
private. Discussions might be speculative in character and possibly misleading. In 
support, Members were reminded of the objective under the new arrangements  to 
encourage public involvement in scrutiny. If Members wished to pursue this, open 
meetings could assist. Most supported this view. 
 
To accommodate these comments, the Committee agreed that option (c) be pursued 
however varied to indicate that there should be a presumption that the press and 
public would attend meetings unless the Chairman in accordance with procedural 
rules, and officer advise determined otherwise. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That there be a presumption that press and public be allowed to attend 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel meetings unless Chairman determines 
otherwise and published accordingly.  

 
49. WORK PROGRAMME REVIEW  

 
 
(a) Progress Reports – Standing and Task and Finish Panels 

 
(i) Finance and Performance Management 

 
Councillor J M Whitehouse reported on the work of the Finance and Performance 
Standing Panel. The Panel had considered the draft Budget and issues paper. The 
Panel were of the view that the proposed target for next years Council tax increase 
could be achieved. However, there were a number of uncertainties that would need 
to be resolved before a firm view could be taken on the matter. The Panel would be 
examining fees and charges and monitoring the effects of the removal of the 
Highways Agency The Panel had considered the emerging new Council Plan and 
would further consideration to a framework at a future meeting. The Panel had 
focused on Planning Performance and asked appropriate officers and the Portfolio 
Holder to respond on this. Members were invited to submit questions for this 
exercise. 

 
(ii) Housing 
  
The Chairman of the Panel, Councillor S Murray updated members on the meeting of 
the Panel held in September 2005. Two housing briefings had been held and had 
been well attended. The final session would take place on 17 October at 6.00 p. m in 
Committee Room 1. He invited Members to attend. The Councillor summarised the 
items considered by the Panel in which he focused on the Choice Based Lettings and 
Housing allocations scheme.  

 
(iii) Environmental and Planning Services 
 

Page 8



Overview and Scrutiny Committee  6 October 2005 

The Committee considered and agreed to add to the terms of reference of the Panel 
the formulation of a response to the DEFRA Cleaner Neighbourhoods consultation 
document. Noted that this addition would cover those points raised in Councillor Mrs 
Whitehouse’s request on the reserve list on the provision of uniformed 
neighbourhood wardens as part of wider considerations. 

 
The Chairman of the Panel, Councillor D Stallan reported that the Panel had met on 
13 September 2005. At that meeting it was reported that the Panel would receive a 
copy of the Outline Business Plan for the Joint Waste Procurement Process before 
the end of the year. It was noted that representatives of local interests groups who 
might be affected by the East of England Plan who had not yet been invited to 
participate in the  examination in the public attended the meeting to express their 
views about this. It was reported that the Panel requested sight of future submissions 
of the Council to the examination. The Panel considered the Local Plan and scheme 
and would give further consideration to the plan at its next meeting on 20 October 
2005. The review of the re-use of agricultural buildings in the Green Belt was 
underway but was awaiting the completion of a traffic count.  

 
 RESOLVED: 
 

That the Terms of Reference for the Environmental and Planning Services 
Scrutiny Standing Panel be amended to include consideration of the DEFRA 
Cleaner Neighbourhoods Consultation document. 

 
(iv) ICT and E Government  
 
The Chairman of the Panel, Councillor F Maclaine reported that proposals on the ICT 
strategy would be submitted to the next meeting of the Panel in November 2005. 
 
(v) Constitutional Affairs  
 
The Chairman of the Panel reported that the Panel had agreed to undertake a series 
of visits to observe Council meetings at other Local Authorities in support of the 
Panel’s review on enhancing Council debate. The Head of Research and Democratic 
Services asked the Committee to consider whether the formulation of a response to 
the Periodic Elections Review which had been proposed for the reserve list should be 
added to the Panels work load or whether he should draft the reply himself and 
submit it to the next meeting of the panel for consideration. Members agreed this 
latter option. The Head of Research and Democratic Services undertook to take the 
necessary action. It was agreed that a full copy of the review document be also 
submitted to that meeting. 
 
(vi) Leisure  
 
The Chairman, Councillor Mrs Grigg reported a change to the programme. She 
stated that the presentation which was programmed for the September 2005 meeting  
from the new managers of the Council’s Leisure  facilities had been deferred to 20 
October 2005. The review on monitoring arrangements was on target. The last 
meeting on 28 September 2005 had concentrated on youth provision and the Panel 
had  visited Youth Projects in Waltham Abbey. The next meeting would consider a 
response to the government Green Paper on youth provision. The County Youth 
Service had written to the Panel about the future of the vacant Youth Officer post. 
 
(vii)  Parking/Register of Development Proposals 
 

Page 9



Overview and Scrutiny Committee  6 October 2005 

Councillor Maclaine, the Chairman of the Panel reported that a report on the 
establishment of a register for local interests was being  formulated for consideration 
at the next meeting on 18 October 2005. Councillor Angold – Stephens who was 
leading  the Panel’s review of residential parking circulated a report on the review. It 
was noted that the Panel would be considering the Council motion made in 2002 
about the introduction of residential parking permits. Noted that the Area Highways 
Manager would be attending the Panel’s next meeting and that Councillor Mrs Grigg  
was seeking questions for the forthcoming presentation to this Committee on the 
Highways Local Service Agreement. 
 
(viii) Member Training 
 
The Chairman Councillor Mrs Sartin reported that the Panel had not meet since the 
last meeting of this Committee. A Training Portfolio on Scrutiny to involve external 
trainers   was being prepared and would be considered at the Panel’s next meeting 
on 1 November 2005. The Head of Research and Democratic Services reported that 
a survey had been undertaken on Member attendance at mandatory training 
courses. Group Leader had been spoken to about attendance at some courses. 
 
(ix) Traveller issues 
 
The Chairman reported that the Cabinet had agreed a report on Paynes Lane , 
Nazeing including the Panel’s recommendations about the clean up of the site and 
securing compulsory purchase orders. The Panel had spoken to residents and 
considered access arrangements to the site. The encampments at Birchfield, 
Stapleford Tawney were still present and a planning application to Area Plans Sub – 
Committee ‘C’ which had been refused. Travellers had left the site at Hamlett Hill, 
Roydon and submitted another application to Area Plans Sub – Committee ‘D’. The 
Panel had attended a conference about government policies on travellers issues.  
Information on the number of pitches the District might be expected to accommodate 
was being collated. A full report would be made to the next meeting of the Panel on 
22 November 2005. In relation to reporting timescales the Chairman advised  that the 
first three items of the Panel’s terms of reference could be completed on target. 
Following this there could be a delay as residual reviews were awaiting information 
from the Commission for Racial Equality.  
 
(x) Completion dates for reviews 
 
The Chairman of the Committee asked Panel Chairman to report to the next meeting 
expected completion dates for current work plan items. 
 
(b) Review of Work Programme 

 
The Committee reviewed its work programme for May – October 2005.  

 
The Senior Democratic Services Officer reminded Members that earlier on in the 
year, Members had decided to pursue all requests put forward for this programme. 
Concerns had been raised about the implications of this on officer resources which 
had proved to be well founded . There were worries about the ability of some of the 
staff to keep up with current work. In particular, there were concerns about secretarial 
support as Democratic Services staff had only been able to cover this Committee and 
Standing Panels. As a result, administrative support for Task and Finish Panels had 
fallen to Lead Officers. He stated that two additional requests had been forwarded for 
inclusion in the programme. If these were to be pursued, Members would need to 
have regard to the workload of the Panels they wished to add these to in order to 
ensure they had the capacity required to take on additional work. 

Page 10



Overview and Scrutiny Committee  6 October 2005 

 
The Senior Democratic Services Officer reminded the Committee that it was the 
responsibility of this Committee to ensure that requests for the work plan matched 
the resources available to support it. Given the concerns about staffing support 
raised, the Committee might wish to increase resources for scrutiny to achieve this or 
lock in the current programme. 

 
The Senior Democratic Services Officer also reminded Members that a post of 
Scrutiny Support Officer had been added to the establishment following the OS 
review The post had gone out to advert with a closing date of 7 October 2005. He 
advised that none of the applications received to date met the personal specification. 
 
In response, It was proposed that in the event that the scrutiny role could not be 
appointed to and in light of concerns expressed at the meeting, additional staffing 
support should still be sought for the programme. It was suggested that this could be 
achieved by requesting that the expenditure identified for the Scrutiny Support role 
be used to fund the post of Democratic Services Officer which was currently being  
held vacant pending a review of Central Support Costs following the removal of the 
Highways Agency. This would ensure that the vacancy could be recruited to with 
immediate effect and additional secretarial support provided. The Committee agreed 
this and the Chairman undertook to recommend accordingly to the Cabinet. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the Chairman of the Committee put the following proposals to the next 
meeting of the Cabinet on 10 October 2005: 

 
 (a)  That the current position regarding the recruitment of a Scrutiny Support 

Officer and the concerns raised about the ability of officers to keep up with 
current scrutiny commitments; be noted; and 

 
(b)  That in the event that a suitable candidate cannot be identified for the 
post and to address concerns raised above, funding for the role be redirected to 
the post of Democratic Services Officer which is being held vacant pending a 
review of Central Support costs. 

 
(c) Constitutional Affairs Standing Panel – Work Programme 

 
The Committee was asked to consider a report of the Constitutional Affairs Standing 
Panel which sought changes to its current work plan. 

 
RESOLVED: 

 
(1) That the following changes to the Work Programme for the 
Constitutional Affairs Standing Panel be agreed: 

 
(a) Council Meetings - Review of Future Role 

 
That the deadline for submission of this report be put back to April 2006. 

 
(b) Relationships with External Organisations and Partnerships 

 
That the deadline for submission of this report to Council be deferred to 
December 2005. 

 

Page 11



Overview and Scrutiny Committee  6 October 2005 

(c) Protocol and the Use of Services by Members/Contract Standing 
Orders Review 

 
That the deadline for submission of a new protocol be deferred to the 
December 2005 meeting of the Council. 

 
(2) That the Committee notes the Protocol on Member Services and the 
Review of Contract Standing Orders will be submitted to the next meeting of the 
Standing Panel on 3 November 2005 for consideration. 

 
(3) That the formulation of a response to a new Electoral Commission 
consultation paper on periodic electoral reviews be added to the current work 
plan; and 

 
(4) That the Committee notes that there have been no further developments 
in relation to the review of parliamentary constituencies, on the question of 
future electoral pilots and new arrangements for postal voting at the present 
time but that these should remain in the Work Programme for consideration 
later in the year. 

 
50. COUNTY WASTE PROCUREMENT  

 
It was reported that, at the meeting of the Environmental and Planning Services 
Standing Panel on 13 September, the Panel requested that this report be submitted 
to this meeting for comments prior to its consideration by the Cabinet on 10 October 
2005.  
 
The Head of Environmental Services advised that before the West Essex Waste 
Partnership and the West Essex Joint Management Committee could continue with 
the procurement process they needed to be assured that constituent councils 
remained committed to the fundamental principles of Joint working. The changes that 
had been recently made to the process gave Members the opportunity to review and 
reconsider the position . He reported that it was the view of the Portfolio Holder and 
officers that partnership working should remain central to the process.  
 
The Portfolio Holder stated that this was a strategic decision at this stage. Members 
would be able to comment on detailed operation issues at appropriate stages in the 
process. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

(1) That the position regarding the procurement process, and in particular 
the requirements of ODPM in respect of PFI funding for a fully integrated 
waste management solution be noted; 

 
(2) That the Council continue to work in partnership with the County and 
District/Boroughs through the auspices of the Waste Management Advisory 
Board and the West Essex Joint Waste Committee; and 

 
(3) That the Council remains open to all procurement options including 
joint collection arrangements within the West Essex Grouping of collection 
authorities and aligning collection arrangements with the County Council 
disposal contract. 

 
 

51. CABINET REVIEW  

Page 12



Overview and Scrutiny Committee  6 October 2005 

 
It was agreed that the item 16 of the agenda on E-Procurement be raised by the 
Chairman at the next Cabinet meeting on 10 October 2005. 
 

52. EXTERNAL ORGANISATION AND PARTNERSHIP - DRAFT PROTOCOL  
 
The Committee considered a new protocol designed to regulate the Council’s links 
with partnerships and external organisations with which the Authority was involved. 
The Head of Research and Democratic Services reported that the protocol derived 
from an Internal Audit Survey Study and subsequent decisions of the Epping Forest 
Business Awards and the Business Excellence Award held in 2002.  The document 
set out the Council’s policy on involvement in external partnership and organisations 
and policy, written agreement, reporting arrangements insurance and indemnities. 
The Chief Internal Auditor provided advise to the Committee on this latter aspect. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

(1) That the draft Protocol on the Council's relations with Partnerships and 
External Organisations covering member and officer liabilities, indemnities 
reporting back to the Council, annual reports and training be approved; and 
 
(2) That a report be submitted to the Council at its next meeting 
recommending adoption of the Protocol and publication in the Council's 
Constitution 

 
53. REVIEW OF MAY 2006 ELECTIONS  

 
The Head of Research and Democratic Services reported that at its last meeting on 1 
September 2005, the Committee referred back to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Constitutional Affairs Standing Panel the question of counts following polling in the 
2006 District Council Election.  
 
At the last meeting of the Panel, the Returning Officer reported his concerns about 
convening the count on the night of polling in a  centralised venue. He advised that 
based on rough calculations, the arrangement would mean that it was likely that  the 
count could not be completed until the next morning. This would place an undue 
strain on count staff and had health and safety implications. The Returning Officer 
advised the Panel that his decision to hold the counts in three different centres would 
address these issues and  speed up the process. It was acknowledged that a 
decision was needed now so that the planning of the election could commence. 
 
The Committee supported these views and suggested that technology be made 
available in the centres to communicate the election results. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That decision by the Returning Officer to proceed in planning for the May 
2006 District Council Elections on the basis of three separate counts all to be 
held on the evening of the Polling Day be noted 

 
54. CONSULTATION ON THE STRUCTURE OF ESSEX POLICE  

 
The Committee were asked to consider a consultation document issued by the Essex 
Police Authority and Essex Police in relation to a best value review currently being 
carried out in relation to Policing and force structure. 
 

Page 13



Overview and Scrutiny Committee  6 October 2005 

The Chairman agreed to this late report, in view of the timescale involved in the 
consultation exercise. 
 
It was noted that the Police were seeking views of partnership organisations to 
identify considerations on which structure for the service represented the best for 
Essex. The Council had been invited to submit comments to the review  which were 
due by 25 October 2005. 
 
The Committee were asked to consider whether the Council should respond to the 
consultation and if supported  determine whether a special meeting of this Committee 
be held to consider the matter or the appointment of members to be authorised to 
respond on behalf of the Council. 
 
In considering this, attention was drawn to those Members who had been appointed 
to serve on the Police and Community Consultative Group. The Committee agreed 
that as these Members were experienced in the issues, they should be authorised to 
respond. 
 
The Joint Chief Executive (Community) reported that the representatives would be 
attending  a public debate on the proposals at the next meeting of the Police and 
Community Consultative Group to be held on 12 October 2005. It was agreed that 
those  representatives who were also members of Area Plans Sub – Committee  ‘B’ 
also to be held that night would be written to so that they were informed about the 
arrangements and given the opportunity to appoint a substitute for the public debate 
if that was their wish. 
 
It was noted that this matter would be considered by a further meeting at which the 
reply to be sent by the Council could be agreed. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

(1) That the following Members be authorised to respond to the 
consultation on behalf of the Council: 

 
Councillors M Cohen, Mrs J Davis, P Gode, R Haines, J Hart, L Martin, Mrs S 
Perry, Mrs J Whitehouse  

 
(2) That a letter be sent to Councillors Mrs S Perry and Mrs J Whitehouse 
to ask them whether they wish to appoint a substitute for the public debate 

CHAIRMAN
 

Page 14



O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

W
or

k 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
20

05
/0

6 
M

ay
 –

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

5 
 IT

EM
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
R

EP
O

R
T 

D
EA

D
LI

N
E 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  C

O
M

M
EN

TS
  

H
ou

si
ng

 S
ta

nd
in

g 
Pa

ne
l 

A
nn

ua
l R

ev
ie

w
 o

f H
ou

si
ng

 
A

llo
ca

tio
ns

 S
ch

em
e 

S
ep

t 2
00

5 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

P
an

el
 o

n 
15

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
5 

 

A
nn

ua
l E

th
ni

c 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f H

ou
si

ng
 A

pp
lic

an
ts

  
Ju

ly
 2

00
5 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
P

an
el

 o
n 

21
 J

ul
y 

20
05

 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

– 
S

ix
 M

on
th

ly
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

R
ep

or
t  

S
ep

t 2
00

5 
an

d 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

6 
O

n 
Ta

rg
et

 - 
Fi

rs
t s

ix
 m

on
th

ly
 re

po
rt 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 

by
 P

an
el

 o
n 

15
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

5 
 

D
ra

ft 
P

riv
at

e 
S

ec
to

r H
ou

si
ng

 
A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
P

ol
ic

y 
 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
5 

 

In
iti

at
iv

es
 fo

r r
ed

uc
in

g 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 E
m

pt
y 

P
ro

pe
rti

es
 in

 P
riv

at
e 

S
ec

to
r. 

 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
5 

O
n 

Ta
rg

et
 P

an
el

 h
as

 a
gr

ee
d 

th
at

 p
rio

rit
y 

gi
ve

n 
to

 
re

vi
ew

 b
e 

ch
an

ge
d 

to
 ‘h

ig
h’

. D
et

ai
le

d 
re

po
rt 

to
 b

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 n
ex

t m
tg

. 
D

ra
ft 

st
ra

te
gy

 d
ue

 to
 b

e 
re

po
rte

d 
in

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
6.

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 C

ho
ic

e 
B

as
ed

 L
et

tin
gs

 S
ch

em
e 

 
Fi

rs
t r

ep
or

t -
 S

ep
t 

20
05

 
O

n 
Ta

rg
et

 F
irs

t r
ep

or
t c

on
si

de
re

d 
by

 P
an

el
 o

n 
15

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
5.

 O
ut

co
m

e 
of

 n
ex

t s
ta

ge
 o

f 
pr

oc
es

s 
to

 b
e 

re
po

rte
d 

to
 n

ex
t m

ee
tin

g 
A

nn
ua

l R
ev

ie
w

 o
f H

ou
si

ng
 –

 
R

el
at

ed
 F

ee
s 

an
d 

C
ha

rg
es

  
N

ov
 2

00
5 

R
ep

or
t p

ro
po

se
d 

fo
r D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
5 

m
ee

tin
g 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
(6

 M
on

th
ly

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
R

ep
or

t) 
S

ep
t 2

00
5 

an
d 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
5 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 P

ro
vi

de
d 

Ea
rly

 a
t 1

5 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

5 
U

pd
at

ed
 d

ra
ft 

Lo
ca

l 
S

up
po

rti
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

S
tra

te
gy

  
M

ar
ch

 2
00

5 
 

Lo
ca

l S
up

po
rti

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
S

tra
te

gy
 A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

– 
(6

 
M

on
th

ly
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

R
ep

or
t) 

S
ep

t 2
00

5 
N

ot
 y

et
 d

ue
 –

 In
iti

al
 s

ix
 m

on
th

 p
er

io
d 

du
e 

to
 

ex
pi

re
 in

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

5.
 R

ep
or

t o
n 

th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

t n
ex

t m
ee

tin
g.

 

P
ro

po
se

d 
th

at
 4

 
m

ee
tin

gs
 w

ill
 b

e 
he

ld
 

ov
er

 1
2 

m
on

th
 c

yc
le

. 
 N

ex
t m

ee
tin

g:
 

7 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
5 

at
 

5.
00

 p
.m

  

Agenda Item 6

Page 15



IT
EM

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EA
D

LI
N

E 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  P
R

O
G

R
ES

S 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  C
O

M
M

EN
TS

  
In

tro
du

ct
or

y 
Te

na
nc

y 
S

ch
em

e 
– 

D
is

cr
et

io
na

ry
 ri

gh
ts

 
 

S
ep

t 2
00

5 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 a
t 1

5 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

5 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
S

tra
te

gy
 o

n 
Te

na
nt

s 
P

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

 
S

ep
t 2

00
5 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 a

t 1
5 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
5 

U
pd

at
ed

 d
ra

ft 
H

ou
si

ng
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
S

tra
te

gi
es

 o
n 

O
ld

er
 

P
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

H
ou

si
ng

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t  

Ju
ly

 2
00

5 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 a
t 2

1 
Ju

ly
 2

00
5 

m
ee

tin
g 

 

U
pd

at
ed

 d
ra

ft 
H

ou
si

ng
 

S
tra

te
gy

  
S

ep
t 2

00
5 

D
el

ay
ed

 –
 N

ow
 to

 b
e 

pr
es

en
te

d 
to

 th
e 

P
an

el
’s

 
ne

xt
 o

r f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

m
ee

tin
g 

du
e 

to
 w

id
e 

sc
al

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
be

in
g 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
R

ep
or

t o
n 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 o
f P

riv
at

e 
S

ec
to

r H
ou

se
 C

on
di

tio
n 

S
ur

ve
y 

D
ec

 2
00

5 
 

U
pd

at
ed

 d
ra

ft 
H

R
A

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

la
n.

  
M

ar
ch

 2
00

6 
 

 

C
on

st
itu

tio
na

l A
ffa

irs
 S

ta
nd

in
g 

Pa
ne

l 
C

ou
nc

il 
M

ee
tin

gs
 –

 
C

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

Q
ue

st
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

ot
io

ns
  

B
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

m
ee

tin
g 

on
 2

7 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

05
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
  

C
ou

nc
il 

M
ee

tin
gs

 –
 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
Fu

tu
re

 R
ol

e 

A
pr

il 
20

06
 

R
ev

ie
w

 u
nd

er
w

ay
 –

 v
is

its
 to

 o
th

er
 C

ou
nc

ils
 in

 
pr

og
re

ss
 

C
on

tra
ct

 S
ta

nd
in

g 
O

rd
er

s 
an

d 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 - 

R
ev

ie
w

  

B
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

m
ee

tin
g 

on
 1

3 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
05

 

O
n 

Ta
rg

et
 –

 R
ev

ie
w

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 P

an
el

 o
n 

3 
N

ov
 

20
05

  

P
ro

to
co

l f
or

 R
el

at
io

ns
hi

ps
 

w
ith

 e
xt

er
na

l o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 

an
d 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
s 

B
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

m
ee

tin
g 

on
 2

7 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

05
. 

C
om

pl
et

ed
   

 

   

Page 16



IT
EM

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EA
D

LI
N

E 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  P
R

O
G

R
ES

S 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  C
O

M
M

EN
TS

  
E

le
ct

io
ns

 2
00

5 
 

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

  

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f C

ha
ng

es
 in

 le
ga

l 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 c

on
ce

rn
in

g 
po

st
al

 v
ot

in
g 

an
d 

re
so

ur
ce

 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
  

B
y 

M
ay

 2
00

6 
(S

ub
je

ct
 to

 O
D

P
M

 
tim

et
ab

le
)  

A
w

ai
tin

g 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t P
ro

po
sa

l  

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
P

ar
lia

m
en

ta
ry

 C
on

st
itu

en
ci

es
  

B
y 

M
ay

 2
00

6 
(S

ub
je

ct
 to

 O
D

P
M

 
tim

et
ab

le
) (

P
os

si
bl

e 
re

se
rv

e 
lis

t i
te

m
) 

A
w

ai
tin

g 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t P
ro

po
sa

l 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

P
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
in

 fu
rth

er
 

E
le

ct
or

al
 P

ilo
ts

.  

B
y 

M
ay

 2
00

6 
(S

ub
je

ct
 to

 O
D

P
M

 
tim

et
ab

le
) 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 P

an
el

 3
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
5.

 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f C

ha
ng

es
 in

 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 fo
r e

le
ct

or
al

 
re

gi
st

ra
tio

n.
  

B
y 

M
ay

 2
00

6 
(S

ub
je

ct
 to

 O
D

P
M

 
tim

et
ab

le
) 

E
le

ct
io

n 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
do

cu
m

en
t 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 b

y 
P

an
el

 o
n 

3 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
5 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 o

n 
ne

w
 p

ro
to

co
l 

on
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 M
em

be
r 

S
er

vi
ce

s.
 

B
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

m
ee

tin
g 

on
 1

3 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
05

 
 

R
ev

ie
w

 b
y 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 is
 ta

ki
ng

 lo
ng

er
 

th
an

 e
xp

ec
te

d.
  

 N
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 

co
up

le
d 

w
ith

 b
ro

ad
er

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 
M

em
be

r S
er

vi
ce

s.
 

 

 

Page 17



IT
EM

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EA
D

LI
N

E 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  P
R

O
G

R
ES

S 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  C
O

M
M

EN
TS

  
R

es
po

ns
e 

to
 n

ew
 E

le
ct

or
al

 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
pa

pe
r o

n 
el

ec
to

ra
l r

ev
ie

w
s 

  
In

iti
al

ly
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
by

 P
an

el
 o

n 
3 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

5.
 

      

 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l a
nd

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
 S

ta
nd

in
g 

Pa
ne

l 
E

ss
ex

 C
ou

nt
y 

Jo
in

t W
as

te
 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t P
ro

ce
ss

  
O

ng
oi

ng
 

P
an

el
 to

 re
ce

iv
e 

m
in

ut
es

 o
f W

es
t E

ss
ex

 J
oi

nt
 

W
as

te
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 a
s 

th
ey

 b
ec

om
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e.
  

 S
pe

ci
al

 m
ee

tin
g 

to
 b

e 
ar

ra
ng

ed
 in

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

5 
to

 c
on

si
de

r O
ut

lin
e 

B
us

in
es

s 
C

as
e 

fo
r p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

pr
oc

es
s.

  
R

e 
us

e 
of

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 in

 th
e 

G
re

en
 B

el
t –

 tr
an

sp
or

t s
tu

dy
 

on
 v

eh
ic

le
 m

ov
em

en
ts

  

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

5 
(fo

r f
ea

si
bi

lit
y 

st
ud

y)
 

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
6 

(m
ai

n 
st

ud
y)

 

R
ev

ie
w

 u
nd

er
w

ay
 –

 In
iti

al
 fe

as
ib

ilit
y 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
on

 w
or

k 
re

qu
ire

d 
fo

r m
ai

n 
st

ud
y 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

5.
  

 M
ai

n 
st

ud
y 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
6 

Lo
ca

l P
la

n 
an

d 
S

ch
em

e 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

5 
R

ev
ie

w
 u

nd
er

w
ay

 –
 P

an
el

 h
av

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 re
vi

ew
 

on
 a

lte
ra

tio
ns

 to
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

an
d 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 

co
ns

id
er

 L
oc

al
 S

ch
em

e.
  

   
E

as
t o

f E
ng

la
nd

 P
la

n 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
5 

R
ev

ie
w

 u
nd

er
w

ay
 

    

N
ex

t m
ee

tin
g:

 1
6 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

5 
– 

at
 

7.
00

 p
.m

  

Page 18



IT
EM

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EA
D

LI
N

E 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  P
R

O
G

R
ES

S 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  C
O

M
M

EN
TS

  
R

es
po

ns
e 

to
 D

E
FR

A
 –

 
C

le
an

er
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
do

cu
m

en
t/P

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f 

un
fo

rm
ed

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 

w
ar

de
ns

 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

5 
fo

r 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
do

cu
m

en
t. 

 
D

ea
dl

in
e 

fo
r r

ev
ie

w
 

of
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f 

w
ar

de
ns

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

la
te

r d
ue

 to
 n

at
ur

e 
of

 w
or

k 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

 
Th

is
 w

as
 a

dd
ed

 a
t 

th
e 

la
st

 m
ee

tin
g 

of
 

O
S

C
 o

n 
6 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

05
 

Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ta
nd

in
g 

Pa
ne

l 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f N
ew

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
la

n 
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
5 

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
t 8

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

5 
m

ee
tin

g.
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 C

on
fe

re
nc

e 
20

05
/0

6 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
5 

Th
e 

re
vi

ew
 to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 th

e 
re

su
lts

 o
f t

he
 U

se
r 

A
ud

it 
Fo

cu
s 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 b

y 
P

an
el

 o
n 

8 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
05

  
Fi

na
nc

e 
- B

ud
ge

t C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

5 
In

iti
al

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
gi

ve
n 

to
 th

e 
re

vi
ew

 a
t 2

6 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

5 
m

ee
tin

g.
 

 
B

es
t V

al
ue

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 D
at

a 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

5 
S

ec
on

d 
Q

ua
rte

rly
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
at

 8
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

5 
m

ee
tin

g 
of

 P
an

el
 

P
la

nn
in

g 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
  

(O
th

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 b

e 
sc

ru
tin

is
ed

 in
 ro

ta
tio

n)
  

 
P

or
tfo

lio
 H

ol
de

rs
 a

nd
 re

le
va

nt
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 a

tte
nd

ed
  

m
ee

tin
g 

of
 P

an
el

 o
n 

8 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
5 

to
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
is

. 
U

se
r A

ud
it 

Fo
cu

s 
 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 P

an
el

 o
n 

8 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
5 

 

E-
G

ov
er

nm
en

t a
nd

 IC
T 

St
an

di
ng

 P
an

el
 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

IE
G

 
S

tra
te

gy
  

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
5 

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 a
t 8

 A
ug

us
t 2

00
5 

m
ee

tin
g 

of
 P

an
el

 
N

ex
t m

ee
tin

g:
 2

1 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
5.

  

Page 19



IT
EM

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EA
D

LI
N

E 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  P
R

O
G

R
ES

S 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  C
O

M
M

EN
TS

  
In

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 a
 C

us
to

m
er

 
C

on
ta

ct
 C

en
tre

 
 

R
ep

or
t o

n 
se

co
nd

 s
ta

ge
 to

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 b

y 
P

an
el

 
on

 2
1 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

5 
IC

T 
S

tra
te

gy
 R

ev
ie

w
 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

5 
 

D
ef

er
re

d 
to

 N
ov

 2
00

5 
m

ee
tin

g 
of

 P
an

el
 

R
e-

us
e 

of
 P

ub
lic

 S
ec

to
r 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
00

6 
V

ar
io

us
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

aw
ai

te
d 

 

 

M
em

be
r C

on
ne

ct
iv

ity
 S

ch
em

e 
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 a

t 2
9 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
5 

m
ee

tin
g 

 
 

 

E
-P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t. 

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 a
t 2

9 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

5 
m

ee
tin

g 
 

 

Ta
sk

 a
nd

 F
in

is
h 

Pa
ne

l o
n 

Ex
te

rn
al

ly
 F

un
de

d 
Le

is
ur

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 Y

ou
th

 P
ro

vi
si

on
 

Y
ou

th
 P

ro
vi

si
on

 in
 th

e 
D

is
tri

ct
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

5 
U

nd
er

w
ay

  
 

C
on

tra
ct

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
A

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

  
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
5 

U
nd

er
w

ay
  

     
E

xt
er

na
l F

un
di

ng
  

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
00

5 
    

   

Ta
sk

 a
nd

 F
in

is
h 

Pa
ne

l o
n 

R
eg

is
te

r o
f L

oc
al

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
ro

po
sa

ls
 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f R

oa
ds

 a
nd

 
P

av
em

en
ts

 in
 D

is
tri

ct
  

E
st

ab
lis

hm
en

t o
f R

eg
is

te
r o

f 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
fo

r 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

ro
po

sa
ls

 - 

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

5 
Ta

sk
 a

nd
 F

in
is

h 
P

an
el

 s
pl

it 
in

to
 tw

o 
gr

ou
ps

 to
 

co
ns

id
er

: 
 (i)

  R
ev

ie
w

 o
f P

ar
ki

ng
 P

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
 

(ii
) E

st
ab

lis
hm

en
t o

f R
eg

is
te

r o
f L

oc
al

   
  I

nt
er

es
ts

  
 

Th
e 

Pa
ne

l h
av

e 
no

w
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 it

s 
w

or
k 

pl
an

. F
in

al
 re

po
rt

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 
th

is
 a

nd
 8

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
5 

O
SC

 m
ee

tin
g 

Page 20



IT
EM

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EA
D

LI
N

E 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  P
R

O
G

R
ES

S 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  C
O

M
M

EN
TS

  
Ta

sk
 a

nd
 F

in
is

h 
Pa

ne
l o

n 
Tr

av
el

le
r i

ss
ue

s 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 

un
au

th
or

is
ed

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

en
ca

m
pm

en
ts

 a
nd

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r ‘
to

le
ra

te
d’

 
si

te
s 

 
U

nd
er

w
ay

  
 C

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
su

rv
ey

 o
n 

tra
ve

lle
r i

ss
ue

s 
to

 b
e 

re
po

rte
d 

in
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
5.

 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t G

ui
da

nc
e 

an
d 

D
is

tri
ct

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

M
ar

ch
/A

pr
il 

20
06

 
A

w
ai

tin
g 

ou
tc

om
e 

of
 C

R
E

 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 fo
r R

ac
ia

l 
E

qu
al

ity
 F

in
di

ng
s 

Ju
ne

/J
ul

y 
20

06
 

 
A

w
ai

tin
g 

ou
tc

om
e 

of
 C

R
E

 

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 P
W

G
2 

m
at

te
rs

  
  

 

N
ex

t m
tg

: 2
2 

N
ov

 
20

05
 

Ta
sk

 a
nd

 F
in

is
h 

Pa
ne

l o
n 

M
em

be
r T

ra
in

in
g 

M
em

be
r T

ra
in

in
g 

on
 s

cr
ut

in
y 

sk
ill

s 
an

d 
ne

w
 s

tru
ct

ur
e 

 
 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 P
or

tfo
lio

 u
nd

er
 p

re
pa

ra
tio

n.
 C

on
si

de
re

d 
at

 
m

ee
tin

g 
on

 1
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
5 

M
em

be
rs

 T
ra

in
in

g 
 - 

G
en

er
al

  
 

O
ut

lin
e 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 o

n 
1 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

05
 

 

O
S

C
 R

ev
ie

w
 

 
D

itt
o 

   
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
S

cr
ut

in
y 

of
 o

ut
si

de
 b

od
ie

s 
 - 

Lo
ca

l S
tra

te
gi

c 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
  

 
P

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
nd

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 

O
S

C
 o

n 
7 

Ju
ly

 2
00

5.
 

 
S

cr
ut

in
y 

of
 o

ut
si

de
 b

od
ie

s 
 - 

P
rim

ar
y 

C
ar

e 
Tr

us
t 

 
P

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
t 6

 O
ct

 2
00

5 
m

ee
tin

g 
on

 p
ro

po
se

d 
re

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
of

 P
C

Ts
. 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tio

n 
of

 P
IC

K
 s

ys
te

m
  

 
  

Fu
tu

re
 m

ee
tin

gs
: 

 8 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
5 

2 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
5 

2/
16

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
5 

6 
A

pr
il 

20
05

 

Page 21



IT
EM

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EA
D

LI
N

E 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  P
R

O
G

R
ES

S 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  C
O

M
M

EN
TS

  
Lo

nd
on

 U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 L
td

 
(L

U
L)

 L
ia

is
on

  
 

P
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
de

fe
rr

ed
  -

 n
o 

da
te

 a
gr

ee
d.

 
In

fo
rm

al
 m

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 L

U
L 

be
in

g 
he

ld
 o

n 
22

 
S

ep
t 2

00
5 

 
Li

ai
so

n 
on

 H
ig

hw
ay

s 
Lo

ca
l 

S
er

vi
ce

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t  

 
E

ss
ex

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

pr
op

os
al

s 
aw

ai
te

d 
D

ue
 in

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
5.

 
 P

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

on
 L

S
A

 p
ro

gr
am

m
ed

 fo
r t

hi
s 

m
ee

tin
g.

 
 

 

 

Page 22



Report to Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date of meeting: 10 November 2005 
  
Subject: Establishment of Register for Local Concerns 
 
Member contact for further information: Councillor F Maclaine 
 
Democratic Services contact: Z Folley (ext 4532) 
 
 

Recommendations: 
 

(1) That a formal means of registering matters of concern affecting the 
Wards in the District be adopted; 
 
(2) That the means of registering such matters with the Council be done by 
means of a specific Form (Appendix 1); 

 
(3) That each Registration is numbered to facilitate a trace of 
action/decision taken by the Council; 

 
(4) To provide a record of outstanding issues affecting a Ward; 
 
(5) That the ICT and Corporate Support Services Portfolio Holder, in 
conjunction with officers and other appropriate portfolio holders be requested 
to consider the operation of and resources required for this scheme. 

 
Report 
 

1. Over the years there has been a marked tendency for certain issues of concern in 
a Ward to ‘suffer slippage’.  This is to be expected given the scale of priorities.  
What is not acceptable is that such issues should ‘disappear’ and fail to be 
accounted for in successive Work Programmes.  The perception is that each 
Financial Year starts afresh and issues have to be repeated. 

 
2. The effects of these ‘omissions’ have the effect of distorting budgetary 

considerations and compound the problems of their resolution.  It also gives the 
Public a distorted perception of the Council’s Administration.  

 
3. A very important factor in this regard is the Government’s directive to implement 

Electronic Government.  Priority Outcome 7 states: 
 

Online public reporting/applications, procurement and tracking of environmental 
services, includes waste management and street scene (e.g. abandoned cars, 
graffiti removal, bulky waste removal, recycling) 

  
4. This may result in substantial increase in demand which will impact on 

Administrative operations and Budget provisions. 
 

Options Considered 
 

5. Since implementation of Priority Outcome 7 will not be resolved until 2006 the 
Panel is not able to issue guidance on how the Registry might operate. 

 
6. In spite of this limitation, it is felt that a manual Registry ‘system’, utilising a 

specific Report Form, should be put into operation as soon as possible. 

Agenda Item 8

Page 23



 
7. The system will easily convert to e - Government once the technology is brought 

on stream and facilitate Member search/submission online. 
 
8. Operation of such a ‘system’ will assist in better determining budgetary demands 

in the future. 
 

Reasons for Recommendation 
 

9. It is essential that Ward Members are able to demonstrate to their constituents 
that issues of concern, ranging from highway matters to environmental issues, 
have been properly addressed. 

 
10. Implementation of e - Government will lead to the Public being able to monitor 

progress of such issues in the future.  
 

11. In addition it is important that such matters continue to feature in Annual Work 
Programmes until they have reached resolution.  

 
Community Impact 
 

12. Ward Residents feel that the Council disregards matters that impact on the quality 
of their environment.  The introduction of Requirement 7 will significantly empower 
the Public to register their concerns, and the Council needs to be ready to account 
for it. 

 
Resource Implications 
 

13. Unable to quantify at the present time, but unlikely to be significant. As the 
operation of this system is an executive function, we are seeking for the ICT and 
Corporate Support Services Portfolio Holder to consider how best it should be 
controlled and operated. 

 
Wards affected: All Epping Forest 

 
Corporate Objectives 
 

14 To be able to demonstrate to Ward Residents that issues of concern have been 
properly lodged with the Council for assessment and consideration.  

 
15. To ensure that issues outstanding at the end of each Financial Year are carried 

forward for inclusion in the Annual Work Programme of each succeeding year. 
 
16. To facilitate the on-line integration of reporting matters of concern by members of 

the Public under the Government’s Electronic Government proposals (see Para 
3.3). 

 

Page 24



EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
WARD REPORT FORM 

 
REGISTER ACTION NUMBER: …………  

 
WARD: …………………………………………………………………………………  
 
REPORTING MEMBER: ……………………………              Date: ………………… 

SERVICE CATEGORY: 
(e.g.  Building Services :  Environmental  : Highways  :  Housing :  Leisure, etc) 

 
DETAILS OF CONCERN (attach any supporting documentation e.g. letters, petitions, photographs, etc) : 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
HISTORY OF CONCERN (if any) : 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
RESPONDING OFFICER: ………………………………         Date received: ………………. 
 
ACTION TAKEN:  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

FORM RECORDED: …………………. (Date) 

COMPLETED FORM COPIED TO REPORTING MEMBER : …………………. (Date) 
 

MEMBER’S FOLLOW-UP NOTES (as necessary) 
 

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



Report to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
Date of Meeting: 10 November 2005 
 
 
 
Portfolio People First 
 
Subject: Overview and Scrutiny – Staffing Support 
 
Officer contact for further information: I Willett (01992 564243) 
 
Democratic Services Assistant:  Zoe Folley (01992 564532) 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
To note the action being taken by the Head of Research and Democratic Services to 
provide additional staffing support to Overview and Scrutiny. 
 
Report: 
 
1. At the last meeting of the Committee and subsequently at the Cabinet meeting on 

10 October 2005, reference was made to the need for additional support for the 
Overview and Scrutiny process.  The need for support concerns "Task and Finish" 
Panels for which there is currently insufficient staff resources from Research and 
Democratic Services.  This has meant that secretarial/administrative support for 
those "Task and Finish" Panels has been met from service areas.   

 
2. The staffing position within Research and Democratic Services is as follows: 
 
 (a) Overview and Scrutiny Officer (Post UCM/11) - two attempts have been made 

to make an appointment to this Grade 7 position without success.  The cost of 
advertisements is significant and at the current salary range, which is based on a job 
evaluation of the Job Description and Person Specification, there is no confidence 
that an appointment can be made. 

 
 (b) Democratic Services Officer (Post UCM (05)) (Grade 7) – this is a vacant 

position which is being held as a result of the transfer back to Essex County Council 
of the Highways Agency.  The cost of the post is attributable in part to work on traffic 
and parking orders which are no longer carried out by the District Council.   

 
3. After further consideration of how best to support Overview and Scrutiny, the Head of 

Research and Democratic Services has concluded that the Committee and the 
various Standing and "Task and Finish" Panels will be best served by recruiting a 
Democratic Services Officer.  Although this will mean that the Scrutiny Officer role 
will be lost, the post will provide additional support at an experienced level to the 
Overview and Scrutiny process, and in particular the "Task and Finish" Panels.  This 
post will also assist by increasing resources at a time when the number of member 
meetings (including "Task and Finish" Panels) is showing a significant increase. 

 
4. One vacant post will not be filled and part of the cost will contribute to a reduction in 

central support costs arising from the loss of the Highways Agency.   
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 27



5. If need be, a further report will be made if there proves to be any difficulties in making 
an appointment to the post of Democratic Services Officer. 

 

Resource Implications: 
 
Budget provision: 
 

Scrutiny Officer (UCM/11) £30,840 (mid point) (including on-costs) 

Democratic Services Officer (UCM/05) £30,840 (mid point) (including on-costs) 

 

Recharged to the former Highways Agency 2004/5 £24,000 – attributable to Democratic 

Services Officer post UCM/02. 

 

No additional funding is required. 
 

Page 28


